
 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

August 29, 2022 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional for all meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Minutes. 

a. Consider for action the Minutes of the August 1st Regular Meeting, August 5th Special 
Called Meeting, August 8th Work Session and August 8th Special Called Meeting. 
ACTION: 

4. Public Hearing for the Proposed Millage Rate Increase to 19.069 mils for the County-Wide 
General Fund. The millage rate of 9.173 will remain the same for the Special Services 
District.  (Those wishing to speak on this matter should print their name on the Sign 
up Sheet in the rear of the Chamber prior to the start of the meeting). 

5. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Judge Willie Lockette present to thank the Commission for support of a Superior Court 
Judgeship for the Dougherty Judicial Circuit and to address any concerns. 

b. Representatives from Sea Breeze Albany, LLC present to provide an update and plans 
for 600 Holly Drive. 

c. Tammi Starkey, Senior Vice President, NFP Corporate Services present to update the 
Commission on the 2023 Plan Benefit Renewals.   

1



d. Jana Dyke, President & CEO Albany-Dougherty Economic Development Commission, 
present to update the Commission with the quarterly report.    

e. William Wright, representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc. present to continue his update 
to the Commission on the Federal Reserve Bank Loan, Mainstreet Lending Program 
and Entrepreneur Academy. 

6. Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action the Resolution authorizing the execution of the amended 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Albany for the 2022 Byrne Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) Program in the amount of $21,347.20.  The Agreement 
stipulates that the County will receive 20% of the total award ($106,737).  The grant 
award increased after the Commission's approval in the July 18, 2022 Regular 
Meeting. County Administrator Michael McCoy will address.  ACTION: 

b. Consider for action the Resolution declaring the listed vehicles and equipment as 
surplus and authorizing the disposal of or sale of same via an online auction.  Assistant 
County Administrator Scott Addison will address.  ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the approval of the 2022 Millage Rates 
for the County-Wide General Fund, Special Services District Fund, Dougherty County 
School System and State of Georgia.  ACTION: 

7. Updates from the County Administrator. 

a. Reminder- In observance of the Labor Day Holiday, there will be no meeting on 
Monday, September 5, 2022.  The next meeting will be a Work Session on Monday, 
September 12, 2022. 

b. Reminder - The annual recycling event sponsored by KADB will be held on Saturday, 
September 10th, rain or shine, in the parking lot behind the Civic Center, 9 a.m. -  
1 p.m. 

8. Updates from the County Attorney. 

9. Updates from the County Commission. 

10. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

2



 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

August 1, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on August 1, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 a.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, 

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator 

Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney  

Alex Shalishali, Deputy County Clerk Bristeria Hope, and other staff.  County Attorney 

Spencer Lee participated via teleconference and County Clerk Jawahn Ware participated 

remotely.  The public and representatives of the media participated in person and via live 

streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access 

channel.   

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance, the Chairman called for approval of the minutes 

of the July 11th Regular Meeting and the July 11th Work Session.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the minutes 

were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized Dr. Charles Ruis, Director of the Southwest Georgia District for the 

Department of Public Health, to provide information on monkeypox.  Dr. Ruis thanked the 

Commission for their support in the community.  He also said that monkeypox was primarily a 

disease of the skin that is spread by skin-to-skin contact.  He added that there is an antiviral for 

severe monkeypox available and contrasted the difference between monkey pox and covid.  

Commissioner Jones requested pictures to identify monkeypox be sent to the Commission.  

 

The Chairman recognized James Morgan, County Extension Coordinator, to update the 

Commission with the quarterly report.  Mr. Morgan shared a Farm Gate survey handout and 

mentioned that this was the value of agriculture in our County.  He shared the assessed value of 

$65,544,098.68 and mentioned that pecans were the bulk of our survey value.  He also said that 

they have two vacancies for staff positions in his office that he is trying to fill.  

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, the representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc. to speak 

on his concerns about vague issues.  Chairman Cohilas clarified for the public, based upon  

Mr. Wright’s statements that no one is paid $600/hr by the County.  

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase one 2022 Ford Police Interceptor in the 

amount of $38,201 and one 2022 Ford Police Responder in the amount of $37,951 from State 

Contract holder, Wade Ford (Smyrna, GA) for a total expenditure of $76,152.  Funding is 

budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Deputy 

3

Item 3a.



 

 

Chief Terron Hayes, Captain Ken Faust and City of Albany Buyer Corey Gamble were present.  

Mr. Addison said he recommended approval.  

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and 

execution of the service agreement renewal by the County Administrator with Ambulance 

Medical Billing (AMB), (Paducah, Kentucky) for EMS billing. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-035a is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND 

EXECUTION OF THE JUNE 27, 2022 AMB SERVICE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY EMS AND CREDIT BUREAU 

SYSTEMS, INC., D/B/A AMBULANCE MEDICAL BILLING; 

REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration the submittal of a letter of support from the Chairman to 

the Judicial Council of Georgia for a fourth Superior Court Judge for the Dougherty Judicial 

Circuit.  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Mr. McCoy said that the request is 

for Judge Lockette and he is asking for a letter of support that is due by August 3, 2022.  If 

approved, the County will receive a new Superior Court Judge, Public Defender, District 

Attorney, Judicial Assistant and Staff Attorney and the State will fund all of the listed positions.    

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion.  Under 

discussion, Chairman Cohilas clarified that the County only has discretion in writing the letter of 

support.  Mr. McCoy said that the Judicial Circuit has made Dougherty County eligible due to 

the high level of cases in our area.  The Chairman said that we will move forward with supporting 

the letter but requested for Judge Lockette to present at the next meeting and address the questions 

of the Board.  There being no further discussion, the motion for approval passed with six ayes 

and one nay by Commissioner Gray.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration to adopt a resolution filing for the execution of an 

intergovernmental agreement and calling for the imposition of SPLOST VIII and apportioning 

the estimated $100 million in projected SPLOST proceeds over a six-year period at 36/64 

between Dougherty County and the City of Albany.  County Administrator Michael McCoy and 

County Attorney Alex Shalishali addressed.  Mr. McCoy said that he recommended approval and 

said that the County is on a time-sensitive schedule which makes action vital.  He added that 

action today would be based on SPLOST law and recommended that we move forward with the 

4

Item 3a.



 

 

36/64 split which means 36% will go to the County and 64% will go to the City.  If approved, 

the City of Albany will have to react and move forward to send a letter to the Secretary of State.  

If not, we have two options as follows: 

 

1. Dougherty County can move forward without an intergovernmental agreement and cap a 

5-year collection with the projection of $83 million as opposed to a 6-year collection of 

$100 million or more. 

 

2. Dougherty County can choose from scenario A 36/64 where 36% will go to Dougherty 

County and 64 will go to the City with no agreement or Scenario B 44/56 where 44% will 

go to Dougherty County and 56% will go to the City of Albany with no agreement.   

 

Mr. Addison provided an overview of the SPLOST VIII summary table.  Chairman Cohilas 

provided information about the legislature insight for Tier 1 projects.  He added that we will have 

enough time to make a decision if the City chooses not to accept our offer by calling a Special 

Called Meeting.  Attorney Lee explained how important it is for the citizens to vote for SPLOST.  

Chairman Cohilas thanked Mr. McCoy, Attorney Shalishali, Attorney Lee and  

Mr. Addison for all of their hard work done throughout this process.  Commissioner Gaines 

suggested that we do a proportional reduction in some of the level 2 projects.  Commissioner 

Jones asked if the City Manager and County Administrator could meet and negotiate.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-035b is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A 

SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

CONTRACT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA AND THE CITY 

OF ALBANY; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the proposed millage rate for advertising.  The final 

adoption of the 2022 rate will be set on August 29, 2022.  Public Hearings will be held on  

August 15, 2022 (10 am and 6 pm) and August 29th (10 am).  Commissioner Newsome provided 

a recommendation on behalf of the Finance Committee and Mr. Wall to advertise at a 3.5 millage 

rate.  The Chairman confirmed that the advertisements will reflect 22.87% Countywide and .23% 

in the Special Service District. 

 

The Board recessed from 11:53 am-11:57 am. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  There 

being no further discussion, the motion passed with four ayes and three nays by Commissioners 

Edwards, Gaines and Johnson. 

 

5

Item 3a.



 

 

Attorney Shalishali addressed Commissioner Gaines’ earlier concern by sharing that the Judicial 

Council's primary factor in determining a need for an additional judgeship is based upon the  

docket level of the judge despite the population.  Commissioner Johnson asked for an update 

from the Sheriff’s Office pertaining to the jail’s most recent death case.  Chairman Cohilas 

suggested that an email be sent to update the Board to prevent an impact on potential litigation.  

Commissioner Johnson said that he would forego the request.  Commissioner Edwards asked if 

inmate labor could be used again to assist Public Works and the Chairman asked Mr. McCoy to 

get more information.  Commissioner Gray thanked the staff for looking at the citizens' best 

interest regarding the millage rate and SPLOST information.  Chairman Cohilas said that he 

wanted to extend thanks to the Commission for all the work that has been completed. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

12:09 p.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

6

Item 3a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

August 5, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting in Room 100 of the 

Albany-Dougherty Government Center on August 5, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas 

presided and called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm.  Present were Commissioners 

Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also present 

were County Administrator Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, 

County Attorney Alex Shalishali, Deputy County Clerk Bristeria Hope and other staff.  The 

public and representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting 

on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.  County Clerk 

Jawahn Ware participated remotely.  County Attorney Spencer Lee and Commissioner  

Victor Edwards were absent.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the City’s counterproposal received on August 4, 2022 

and to develop a response.  Chairman Cohilas provided an overview of the SPLOST dollars 

and read the letter that was attached to the packet.  He said that the Board has a deadline that 

must be met and wanted to get a consensus today to possibly vote on the following Monday.  

He mentioned that if Dougherty County decided to proceed without an intergovernmental 

agreement, then the City of Albany will not get any funds for at least a year.  Mr. McCoy said 

that the approach today will provide a high-level split.  Mr. Addison shared the SPLOST VIII 

options summary table and said that every project will be affected if we decided to continue 

without an intergovernmental agreement. 

 

Commissioner Gaines asked if we could put a line item [in the request] to help contribute to 

the City’s sewer system.  Chairman Cohilas agreed to consider this contingent upon LOST 

staying the same.  He requested staff to generate a pro forma regarding making a direct 

allocation to the City’s sewer project.  The Chairman also asked for a consensus of the Board 

to write a letter to the City of Albany about direct allocations to support their sewer system and 

support was received. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

3:26 p.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

7

Item 3a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

August 8, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on August 8, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 am.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, 

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  County Administrator Michael McCoy, 

Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, Deputy 

County Clerk Bristeria Hope and other staff were also present.  The public and representatives 

of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook 

page and the government public access channel.  County Attorney Spencer Lee participated via 

teleconference and County Clerk Jawahn Ware participated remotely. 

 

The Chairman asked the Commission to review the minutes of the July 18th Regular Meeting, 

July 25th Work Session and July 25th Special Called Meeting. 

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, a representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc. to discuss 

tax digest concerns and assistance for veterans.  Mr. Wright expressed his concerns about 

discrimination.  Commissioner Johnson clarified that the veterans received a misprint of their 

property taxes but the corrections had been made and were reissued.  He also made it clear that 

services provided for the 711 bus transportation and the 5311 programs are done by the federal 

government and not Dougherty County. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the nomination of the County Voting Delegate at the 

ACCG Legislative Leadership Conference Business Session on September 29, 2022 in  

Jekyll Island.  Chairman Cohilas addressed.   

 

Upon a nomination by Commissioner Johnson, the recommendation of Commissioner  

Anthony Jones as the voting delegate for Dougherty County was unanimously accepted.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion with Community Development Partners and Wood 

Consulting to discuss a public/private partnership to redevelop county-owned property 

(approximately 17 acres) located at 1500 N. Jefferson Street.  Kirby Glaze, President, 

Community Development Partners and Ron Huffman, Wood Consulting addressed.  Mr. Glaze 

provided an overview of the potential development locations for the County such as surface 

parking and other properties of the National Guard.  He mentioned his specialties and his work 

with local government and local authorities.  He asked Dougherty County to consider entering 

into an intergovernmental agreement with the local authority that did not include an obligation 

for Dougherty County.  If agreed upon, he will present a development plan and search for a 

development team to help assist.  Mr. Glaze added that they will present a plan and budget 

when they come back to the Commission.  Commissioner Jones suggested that a market study 

be considered.  Commissioner Gaines suggested that we have small groups to collaborate and 

8

Item 3a.



come back with ideas.  Chairman Cohilas asked that this be put on a Work Session to be 

considered in 30 days for discussion.  

 

The Chairman called for a continued discussion regarding SPLOST VIII Scenarios.  County 

Administrator Michael McCoy and Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  

Action on this item is scheduled for the following Special Called Meeting.   

Mr. Addison provided various options with two additional options.  Chairman Cohilas wanted 

to foreclose and eliminate any negotiation on LOST.  He also said that if there is no 

intergovernmental agreement with the City, then Dougherty County will have to develop a 

plan for a 6-year tenure and level 1 projects.  If they are not in agreement, we will be sending 

Option 5 to the Board of Elections.  Chairman Cohilas asked for a consensus on proposing 

extending $3.5 million to the City for the sewer project and the Board consented. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the proposed board appointments.  Deputy County 

Clerk Bristeria Hope was present to address.  Upon nomination by Chairman Cohilas, the 

recommendation for Ronald Smith was unanimously accepted to the Retirement Fund 

Committee for a four-year unexpired term ending December 31, 2025.   

 

Commissioner Gaines asked Mr. McCoy and Attorney Shalishali to look at two properties on 

Newton Road.  Mr. McCoy shared that he had already passed the complaint on to Public Works.  

Commissioner Johnson thanked Mr. McCoy for bringing Mr. Kirby Glaze.  Commissioner Gray 

thanked everyone who was involved in coming to a consensus regarding the SPLOST VIII 

negotiations.  Commissioner Johnson also asked about the status of the police station 

renovation.  Mr. McCoy said that a brand-new police station is needed and added that funding 

will be considered first and the location second.  Commissioner Johnson also wanted to have 

some discussion on cost saving and efficiency with the Sheriff’s Office and Jail. 

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission the meeting adjourned at  

11:57 a.m. 

 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

9

Item 3a.



 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

August 8, 2022 
 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting in Room 100 of the 

Albany-Dougherty Government Center on August 8, 2022 immediately after the  

Work Session.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to order at 

11:57 am.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, 

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County 

Administrator Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County 

Attorney Alex Shalishali, Deputy County Clerk Bristeria Hope and other staff.  The public 

and representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting 

on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.  County Clerk 

Jawahn Ware participated remotely.  County Attorney Spencer Lee was absent. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration for approval of the resolution providing for the 

execution of a Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Intergovernmental Contract with 

the City of Albany for SPLOST VIII or proceeding without an Intergovernmental 

Agreement.  Chairman Cohilas said that the Dougherty County Commission has a 

consensus to utilize the project government list where 36,000 would go to Dougherty 

County and 64,000 would go to the City of Albany over the next 6 years with one deviation 

of the allocation of $3.5 million to the City of Albany sewer project.  He added that this is 

contingent upon readopting the certification of distribution of LOST at 60 for the City of 

Albany /40 for Dougherty County.  Alternatively, if rejected, the County will adopt to use  

Option 5 which has a split of 38/62 and focuses more on our level 1 projects.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, Commissioner Gaines asked about the legality of our offer being 

contingent on LOST.  Commissioner confirmed that LOST was mentioned in their initial 

letter.  There being no further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.   

Resolution 22-036a is entitled:  

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF 

A SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY, GEORGIA AND THE CITY OF ALBANY; REPEALING 

RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration for the adoption of a new Certificate of Distribution 

for Local Sales & Use Taxes (Local Option Sales Tax). 

10

Item 3a.



 

 

Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, 

the motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-036b is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A 

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX (“LOST”) DISTRIBUTION CERTIFICATE; 

PROVIDING THAT THE TAX WILL BE DISTRIBUTED: 60% OF THE PROCEEDS 

TO THE CITY OF ALBANY AND 40% OF THE PROCEEDS TO DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

12:04 p.m. 
 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

11

Item 3a.



12

Item 5a.



13

Item 5a.



Commission Meeting August 29, 2022

1

Confidential

Dougherty County Board of Commissioners

2023 Benefits Renewal Meeting

August 29, 2022

Agenda

1

• Health plan experience update

• 2023 Health Plan Recommendations

• No plan changes

• No change to employee contributions

• Ancillary coverage recommendations

0

1

14

Item 5c.



Commission Meeting August 29, 2022

2

Medical and Rx Claims Experience

Cumulative Medical/Rx Claims

3

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

Dougherty County

Cumulative Medical/Rx Claims

CY2018 - CY2022 YTD

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2019, 2020 and 2021 claims include ScriptSourcing, Know The Costs and SurgeryPlus.

2

3

15

Item 5c.



Commission Meeting August 29, 2022

3

2023 Funding Projections

Calendar Year 2023 Renewal Projected Costs

5

CY 2022 
Projected

CY 2023 
Projected

Difference $ Difference %

Claims

Total Medical Claims $5,166,874 $5,342,252

Total Rx Claims $468,085 $488,476

Total Expected 
Renewal Year 
Claims

$5,634,959 $5,830,728 $195,769 +3.5%

Fixed Cost

Administrative Fees $235,497 $235,497

Specific Stop Loss 
Fees

$781,460 $937,752

Rx Rebates -$46,839 -$46,839

Consulting Fees $150,000 $150,000

Total Fixed Fees $1,120,118 $1,276,410 $156,292 +14.0%

Renewal 
Summary

Renewal Total 
Projected Costs

$6,755,077 $7,107,138 $352,061 +5.2%

FY23 budgeted 5.1% increase, $343,000

4

5

16

Item 5c.



Commission Meeting August 29, 2022

4

Ancillary Coverage

Ancillary Recommendations 2023

7

• Dental: No changes

• Vision: Add buy up plan option

• Life: No changes

• Disability: Increase LTD max benefit to $10,000

• Accident: No changes

• Critical Illness: No changes

• Universal Life: No changes

• FSA: No changes

6

7

17

Item 5c.



Commission Meeting August 29, 2022

5

Vision Buy Up Plan Option

8

Current Plan High Plan Opt

Humana Vision 100 Humana Vision 130

Eyemed Insight Eyemed Insight

$10 / $25 $10 / $15

$10 Copay $10 Copay

$25 Copay $15 Copay

$100 $130

Every 12 Months Every 12 Months

Every 12 Months Every 12 Months

Every 24 Months Every 12 Months

$55 / 10% retail $55 / 10% retail

$100 $130

Covered in Full Covered in Full

Up to $30 Up to $30

Up to $25 / $40 / $60 Up to $25 / $40 / $60

Up to $50 Up to $65

Up to $80 Up to $104

Up to $200 Up to $200

None None

Current Current

Until 2025 Until 2025

Renewal High Plan Opt

$5.21 $6.51

$10.21 $12.76

$14.99 $18.74

Plan Name

Network

In Network Benefit

Copays (Exams/Materials)

Exam

Eyeglass Lenses (Single/Bifocal/Trifocal)

Frame Allowance

Frequency

Exams

Lenses or Contact Lenses

Frames

Contact Lenses

Contact Lens Fit & Follow Up (Std/Prem)

Contact Lenses - Elective

Contact Lenses - Medically Necessary

Out of Network Reimbursement

Exam

Lenses (Single/Bifocal/Trifocal)

Frames

Elective Contact Lenses

Necessary Contact Lenses

ER Contribution

Participation Requirement

Rate Guarantee

Rates

Single

Employee + 1

Family

Open Enrollment

8

9

18

Item 5c.



Commission Meeting August 29, 2022

6

Open Enrollment

10

• October 24– November 4

• Virtual Education Meetings

• Onsite Enrollment Assistance

NFP.com

10

11

19

Item 5c.



20

Item 5e.



21

Item 5e.



22

Item 5e.



23

Item 5e.



24

Item 5e.



25

Item 5e.



26

Item 5e.



27

Item 5e.



28

Item 5e.



29

Item 5e.



30

Item 5e.



31

Item 5e.



32

Item 5e.



33

Item 5e.



34

Item 5e.



35

Item 5e.



36

Item 5e.



37

Item 5e.



38

Item 5e.



39

Item 5e.



40

Item 5e.



41

Item 5e.



42

Item 5e.



43

Item 5e.



44

Item 5e.



45

Item 5e.



46

Item 5e.



47

Item 5e.



48

Item 5e.



49

Item 5e.



50

Item 5e.



51

Item 5e.



52

Item 5e.



53

Item 5e.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF AN AMENDED 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ALBANY AND DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY RELATIVE TO A 2022 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE (JAG) PROGRAM AWARD; 
REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;  

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia passed  on July 18, 
2022, A Resolution Providing For The Acceptance And Execution Of An Intergovernmental 
Agreement Between The City Of Albany, Georgia And Dougherty County Relative To A 2022 Byrne 
Justice Assistance (JAG) Program Award. 
 
 WHEREAS, since the passing of the aforementioned Resolution, funding has increased for 
2022 Byrne Justice Assistance (JAG) Program Award, thereby increasing the amounts awarded to 
both the City of Albany and Dougherty County; 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous 
of approving and executing an amended Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of 
Albany and Dougherty County relative to a 2022 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 
Award reflecting the increase in funding awarded to the City of Albany and Dougherty County. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I      The attached amended Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of 
Albany and Dougherty County relative to a 2022 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 
Award is hereby approved and the County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute same.  
The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all other documents necessary 
to full implementation of the Intergovernmental Agreement.   
 
 SECTION II    All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 29th day of August, 2022. 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:______________________________ 
           Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
County Clerk 

54

Item 6a.



THE STATE OF GEORGIA     
DOUGHERTY COUNTY 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA  

AND DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 

2022 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM AWARD 
 
KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 2022, by 
and between the COUNTY OF DOUGHERTY, GEORGIA, acting by and through its governing body, 
the Dougherty County Commission (hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), and the CITY OF 
ALBANY, GEORGIA, acting by and through its governing body, the City Commission (hereinafter 
referred to as CITY),  
 

Witnesseth: 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority of Article IX, Section III, Paragraph 
I(a) of the Constitution of the State of Georgia; and 
 

WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing governmental functions or in paying for 
the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or those 
payments from current revenues legally available to that party; and 

 
WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is in the 

best interests of both parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the division of 
costs fairly compensates the performing party for the service or functions under this agreement; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, by mutual agreement, the COUNTY as the required disparate jurisdiction 

receives 20% of the JAG award each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY’S appropriation is $21,347.40 for the JAG award for the JAG 

Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY believe it to be in their best interest to reallocate the 

JAG funds as stated herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY and CITY agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. 
 
CITY and COUNTY agree that the COUNTY should receive a total of $21,347.40 with the balance 
of JAG funds in the amount of $85,389.60 to go to the CITY. 
 
  

55

Item 6a.



Section 2. 
 
COUNTY understands that this grant program ends on September 30, 2025, and all funds must 
have been disbursed by said date; that in order to enable CITY to comply with the program’s 
reporting requirements, COUNTY agrees to provide CITY with copies of purchase orders, invoices 
and receiving reports within 30 days of each such event. COUNTY also agrees to submit a request 
for approval to change the spending plan to the CITY grant administrator as they occur prior to 
spending. 
 

Section 3. 
 
COUNTY agrees to use $21,347.40 for the JAG Program until September 30, 2025. 
 

Section 4. 
 
All of the privileges and immunities from liability that exist in favor of the COUNTY or CITY are 
not affected by this Agreement. 
 

Section 5. 
 
Each party to this Agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing services under 
this Agreement and shall not be liable for any civil liability that may arise from the furnishing of 
the services by the other party. 
 

Section 6. 
 
The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any third party to obtain a right by virtue of this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 7. 
 
COUNTY and CITY agree as follows: 
 
Pre-Requirements.  The COUNTY shall adopt a policy on grant management.  The policy shall 
include provisions for pre-award, award monitoring, post-award, and closeout. CITY has such a 
policy in place dated _11/2021_______________. 
 
Monitoring Requirements.   
 

• COUNTY and CITY must comply with Department of Justice part 200 of uniform 
requirements.  The part 200 uniform requirements are the requirements set out at 2 C.F.R. 
Part 200. 

• The COUNTY must provide grant progress reports and financial reports to the CITY. 
• The COUNTY shall be accountable to the CITY for how it uses federal funds under the 

sub-award. 
• COUNTY shall follow all applicable federal rules referencing financial management, internal 

controls, indirect cost, records retention, and access. 
• COUNTY shall collect and provide performance data quarterly to CITY. 

56

Item 6a.



• COUNTY agrees to comply with all site visits and desk review requests as it pertains to 
the sub-award. 

• COUNTY agrees to provide CITY and auditors access to COUNTY’S records and financial 
statements as necessary.  

 
Post Award: 
 

• The COUNTY shall review and comply with all sub-award provisions and/or special 
conditions. 

• The COUNTY shall submit all required sub-award documents with certified executive 
officers’ signatures and return them to the CITY prior to any spending. 

 
Closeout Requirements: 
 

• COUNTY agrees to submit to CITY, no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the end 
date of the grant, all performance, financial and other reports as required by the terms 
and conditions of the federal award. 

• The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must make prompt payments to the 
non-Federal entity for allowable reimbursable costs under the Federal award being closed 
out. 

• The non-Federal entity must account for any real and personal property acquired with 
Federal funds or received from the Federal Government in accordance with §§ 200.310 
Insurance coverage through 200.316 Property trust relationship and 200.329 Reporting 
on real property. 

 
Section 8. 

 
By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any obligations express or 
implied other than those set out herein; further, this Agreement shall not create any rights in any 
party, not a signatory hereto. 
 
 
CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA    DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Manager      County Administrator 
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Clerk      County Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:     Approved as to Form: 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Nathan Davis, City Attorney   Alex Shalishali County Attorney 
 

57

Item 6a.



A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE  

ATTACHED LIST OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES; 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF OR SALE OF SAME VIA  

AN ONLINE AUCTION; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia owns the attached list of equipment and 

vehicles; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County has neither an immediate or foreseeable future use for 

said equipment and vehicles; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of 

Dougherty County, Georgia and IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by Authority of same: 

 

 SECTION I.  That the equipment and vehicles specified in the list attached 

hereto are hereby declared surplus and the County Administrator is authorized to dispose 

of or to sell the same via an online auction. 

 

 SECTION II.  That the County Administrator or County Clerk are authorized to 

execute documents necessary to effectuate sale of said equipment and vehicles. 

 

 SECTION III.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are 

repealed.  

 

  

     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF  

     DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

     

     By: ____________________________ 

            CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_________________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

Adopted:  August 29, 2022 

58

Item 6b.



Descrition Unit Number Condition

Dell Optiplex 3020 BY4DX12 Poor

Dell Monitor Fair

Dell Keyboard and Mouse KB-212-B Fair

Description Unit Number Condition

4 Dell Latitude 2XHMNY1, 9BKXKZ1, 2PK8XL1, FVK8XL1 Poor

3 Dell Optiplex 6Y1DFB2, 4QH5482, 1CW082 Poor

Dell Optiplex 3010 6CVWCY1 Poor

2007 Dodge Magnum 59-0745 Fair

Description Unit Number Condition

Lasko Speaker Poor

Pyramid 3600 Poor

4 Red Rolling Chairs Poor

2 Pink Chairs Poor

3 Brown Rolling Chairs Poor

Blue Rolling Chair Poor

Light Bar Poor

2 Beige Cabinets Poor

Gray Cabinet w/ Hutch Poor

6 Black Filing Cabinets Poor

2 Beige Filing Cabinets Poor

4 Fujitsu Scanners Poor

Swanstine Shredder Poor

Panasonic Phone Poor

Administration

ADDU

DCP

Surplus Listing For Approval 08.29.22
59

Item 6b.



Description Unit Number Condition

46 Motorola XTS5000 Portible Radios Will be provided Poor

30 Motorola Radio Batteries Will be provided Poor

6 Motorola Radio Charges for XTS5000 Will be provided Poor

25 Motorola Channel Knobs Good

25 Motorola Volume Knobs Good

35 Motorola Portable Antennas Poor

19 Lapel Microphones Poor

35Motorola Single Port Base Chargers W/Cords Fair

8 Motorola Mobile Radios XLT 5000 Will be provided Poor

Stryker Power Pro Ambulance Cot 61139264 Fair

5 Drawer Metal File Cabinet N/A Fair

Office Desk N/A Poor

End Table N/A Poor

Flat Screen TV N/A Poor

Dell Optiplex 390 Computer Tower 6TXFTR1 Poor

Dell Optiplex 360 Computer Tower HBXVRK1 Poor

Dell Optiplex 3080 Computer Tower 2GGFP22 Poor

Dell Optiplex 3800 Computer Tower 2GFDP22 Poor

Dell 18" Monitor Poor

Description Unit Number Condition

16 Conference Room Chairs Fair

Description Unit Number Condition

2 Dell Computer Towers Poor

Dell Keyboard and Mouse Poor

EMS

Extension Office

Mailroom

Surplus Listing For Approval 08.29.22
60

Item 6b.



Description Unit Number Condition

4 Black Leather Office Chairs Poor

Gray Office Chair Poor

2 Burgundy Office Chairs Poor

Black Rolling Brief Case

Description Unit Number Condition

8 Dell Latitude 7404 Poor

Canon imageRunner 3000 Poor

HP ColorSphere Poor

Sheriff's Office

Public Defender's Office

Surplus Listing For Approval 08.29.22
61

Item 6b.



A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION ASSESSING THE RATE OF TAXATION FOR COUNTY PURPOSES ON ALL 

TAXABLE PROPERTY IN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA AND ON ALL TAXABLE 

PROPERTY IN THE SPECIAL SERVICES DISTRICT OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

FOR 2022; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous of 

assessing the rate of taxation for County purposes on all taxable property in Dougherty County and on all 

taxable property in the Special Services District of Dougherty County for the year 2022. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty 

County, Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 

  

 SECTION I  22.652 mills on the dollar or $22.652 on the thousand is hereby fixed as the rate of 

taxation for County General Fund purposes for the year 2022 with this rate of taxation being reduced by 

the equivalent millage of 3.583 mills on the dollar or $3.583 on the thousand through funds received from 

the Local Option Sales Tax in calendar year 2021 leaving a net tax of 19.069 mills on the dollar or 

$19.069 on the thousand levied or fixed as the rate of taxation for County General Fund purposes on all 

taxable property in Dougherty County for the year 2022. 

 

 SECTION II A net tax of 9.173 mills on the dollar or $9.173 on the thousand is hereby levied on 

all taxable property in the Special Services District of Dougherty County, Georgia. 

 

 SECTION III A net tax of 18.096 mills on the dollar or $18.096 on the thousand is hereby levied 

as the annual equivalent mill rate to be paid and distributed for maintenance and operation of the 

Dougherty County School System. 

 

 SECTION IV A net tax of 0.00 mills on the dollar or $0.00 on the thousand is hereby levied for 

State of Georgia purposes as prescribed by law. 

 

 SECTION V The County Clerk is hereby requested to have this Resolution entered into the 

Minutes of the Board of Commissioners with a copy to be furnished to the Dougherty County Tax 

Director, to the Dougherty County School System and to the Revenue Commissioner of the State of 

Georgia and that the same be advertised if required by law. 

 

 SECTION VI All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 This the 29th day of August 2022. 

 

       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

       BY:__________________________________ 

              Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: __________________________ 

 

 

ADOPTED: ________________________ 

62

Item 6c.



63

Item 6c.


	Top
	Item 3a.	Minutes
	2022.08.01 Minutes Regular
	2022.08.05 Minutes SCM
	2022.08.08 Minutes Work
	2022.08.08 Minutes SCM

	Item 5a.	Delegation a_Judge Lockette
	2022.08.29 Delegation a_Judge Lockette

	Item 5c.	Delegation c_NFP
	2022.08.29 Delegation c_NFP

	Item 5e.	Delegation e_William Wright
	2022.08.29 Delegation e_Wm Wright 1
	2022.08.29 Delegation e_Wm Wright 2

	Item 6a.	Other a_JAG
	Other a_JAG Intergovernmental Resolution
	Other a_JAG MOU

	Item 6b.	Other b_Surplus
	Other b_Surplus Resolution
	Other b_Surplus

	Item 6c.	Other c_Millage Rate
	Other c_County Millage Rate Resolution 2022
	Other c_DCSS Millage Rate Resolution 2022

	Bottom

